
           

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Tuesday, August 20, 2019
6:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, Addison Town Hall 
5300 Belt Line Road, Dallas, Texas 75254

           
Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Commission and will be enacted by
one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be
pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

1. Take action regarding approval of the minutes of the June 18, 2019
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.

 

2. REPLAT/ LOT 2R-1 AND LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1, BELT LINE/MARSH
BUSINESS PARK. Take action to approve a replat of two lots totaling
3.133 acres located generally at 15196 Marsh Lane.

 

Regular Agenda:
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING Case 1787-Z/Village on the Parkway. Public hearing,
discussion, and take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance
changing the zoning on a 31-acre property located at 5100 Belt Line Road,
which property is currently zoned PD, Planned Development, through
Ordinance O12-001, by allowing residential uses and approving
development plans for a new office building with retail ground floor, a new
239-unit multifamily building with structured parking and ground floor retail,
and an expansion of existing structured parking.

 

NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet

 Page 1 

  



NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet
in Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of
this meeting to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized
by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter
551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for the
City). Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in
Open Session following the conclusion of the Executive Session.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

Posted: ____________________________
                  Irma Parker, City Secretary
Date:  Friday, August 16, 2019
Time:  by 3:00 pm
  

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES. PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST

48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

 Page 2 

  



   
Planning & Zoning Commission
Meeting Date: 08/20/2019  

Agenda Caption:
Take action regarding approval of the minutes of the June 18, 2019 Planning and
Zoning Commission meeting.

Attachments
June 18, 2019 P&Z Minutes 



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
June 18, 2019 
6:00 P.M. - Council Chambers
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Road
 

Present: Vice Chair Linda Groce; Commissioner Robert Catalani;
Commissioner Jerry Dougan; Commissioner John Meleky;
Commissioner Eileen Resnik; Commissioner Tom Souers 

Absent: Chair Kathryn Wheeler 
 

               
Pledge of Allegiance
 
1. Discuss and take action regarding approval of the minutes of the May 21,

2019 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.
  

 
  Vice Chair Linda Groce presented a correction on page 5 of 9, where she

voted “Aye” not “Nay” on Case 1796-Z/3820 Belt Line Road.

Motion: Approval of the minutes as corrected.
 

  Moved by Commissioner Eileen Resnik, Seconded by Commissioner John
Meleky 

  AYE:  Vice Chair Linda Groce, Commissioner Robert Catalani,
Commissioner Jerry Dougan, Commissioner John Meleky,
Commissioner Eileen Resnik, Commissioner Tom Souers 

Other:  Chair Kathryn Wheeler (ABSENT) 
Passed 

 
2. AMENDING PLAT/QUORUM NORTH, BLOCK 3. Presentation, discussion

and consideration of an amendment to an existing plat for one lot totaling
4.9798 acres located generally at 5015 Spectrum Drive.

  

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY June 18, 2019

1 of 3 



  Discussion:
Charles Goff, Director of Development Services, presented the Staff Report.

Commissioner Resnik inquired whether the plat amendment results in any
changes to the previously approved development plans. Charles Goff
responded that there would be no above grade changes.

Commissioner Souers inquired what level of changes would be considered
as a violation of previously approved development plans. Charles Goff
responded that as long as the changes are below ground, such as utility
lines, they are outside of zoning purview. However, if there are changes to
the building or site plan, staff would review the proposal to determine
whether such changes could be approved administratively.

Motion: Recommend approval of the request as presented.
 

  Moved by Commissioner Eileen Resnik, Seconded by Commissioner Jerry
Dougan 

  AYE:  Vice Chair Linda Groce, Commissioner Robert Catalani,
Commissioner Jerry Dougan, Commissioner John Meleky,
Commissioner Eileen Resnik, Commissioner Tom Souers 

Other:  Chair Kathryn Wheeler (ABSENT) 
Passed 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING Case 1801-Z/Holiday Inn. Public hearing, discussion,

and take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the
zoning on property located at 4355 Beltway Drive, which property is
currently zoned Planned Development (PD) through Ordinance O95-007, by
amending the permitted uses to allow for the sale of alcoholic beverages for
on-premises consumption only upon approval of a Special Use Permit, and
by approving such Special Use Permit.

  

 
  Discussion:

Charles Goff, Director of Development Services, presented the Staff Report.

Commissioner Catalani inquired whether the request for alcohol sales is
inclusive of red wine and spirits. Charles Goff confirmed.

Vice Chair Linda Groce opened the meeting as a public hearing.

Public Hearing: There were no speakers on this item.

Vice Chair Linda Groce closed the public hearing.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY June 18, 2019

2 of 3 



Vice Chair Linda Groce closed the public hearing.

Applicant’s representative Patrick Hilchey, with Lodging Host, answered
questions from the Commission regarding meeting space, the scope of the
hotel renovation, why the Special Use Permit was not obtained at the
beginning of the renovation process, the difference between Holiday Inn
Express and Holiday Inn, the ownership’s experience in the hotel industry,
increase of the volume of business, external advertising of the bar and
restaurant, TABC licensing, proposed landscape changes to meet the
Town’s Landscape Ordinance, and the next steps in the hotel’s operations.

Motion: Recommend approval of the request with the following condition: 
The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate
to alcoholic beverages in any exterior signage.

 

  Moved by Commissioner John Meleky, Seconded by Commissioner Jerry
Dougan 

  AYE:  Vice Chair Linda Groce, Commissioner Robert Catalani,
Commissioner Jerry Dougan, Commissioner John Meleky,
Commissioner Eileen Resnik, Commissioner Tom Souers 

Other:  Chair Kathryn Wheeler (ABSENT) 
Passed 

 
 

There being no further business before the Commission, the meeting was
adjourned.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY June 18, 2019

3 of 3 



   
Planning & Zoning Commission
Meeting Date: 08/20/2019  

Agenda Caption:
REPLAT/ LOT 2R-1 AND LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1, BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS
PARK. Take action to approve a replat of two lots totaling 3.133 acres located
generally at 15196 Marsh Lane.

Attachments
P&Z Packet 
Plat Document 



 

REPLAT/ LOT 2R-1 AND LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1,  
BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK  

 

REPLAT/ LOT 2R-1 AND LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1, BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK. 

Presentation, discussion and consideration of a replat of two lots totaling 3.133 acres 

located generally at 15196 Marsh Lane. 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

August 16, 2019 

 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: REPLAT/ Lot 2R-1 And Lot 2R-2, Block 
1, Belt Line/Marsh Business Park 

LOCATION:  Two lots totaling 3.133 acres located 

generally at 15196 Marsh Lane 

REQUEST: Approval of a replat 
 
APPLICANT:   Travis Bousquet, Jones Carter 

DISCUSSION:  

Background. This is a replat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, located generally at 15196 Marsh 
Lane, on the northeast corner of Marsh Lane and Arapaho Road. The plat consists of 
Block 1, Lots 2R-1 and 2R-2. 
 
Lot 1 currently contains a RaceTrac gas station and Lot 2 is currently vacant. In 2018, 
both lots underwent a rezoning to allow RaceTrac to expand their building. In order to 
accommodate this development, the property line is being shifted to the east, maintaining 
two separate lots. Additionally, a 10-foot pedestrian easement is being established along 
Marsh Lane and Arapaho Road, the fire lane easement is being expanded across both 
lots, an access easement is being established between the two lots, a 10-foot drainage 
easement is being abandoned, new 10-foot, 20-foot, 25-foot, and 36-foot drainage 
easements are being established with a new pond easement, and a 10-foot electric 
easement is being established. 
 
This plat was originally approved on August 21, 2018 but was not recorded due to change 
in ownership from Gingercrest to Mesquite Creek, both RaceTrac entities. Since last 
approval, the drainage easement was also increased by 5 feet to accommodate for a 
minor redesign of the necessary drainage improvements.   
 
Engineering Review. The plat has been reviewed by Town staff and found to be in 
compliance with all requirements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed plat subject to no conditions. 



ST. LOUIS & SOUTHWESTERN RAILROAD

(100' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

M
AR

SH
 L

AN
E

(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
W

ID
TH

 R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

)

ARAPAHO ROAD
(FORMERLY REALTY ROAD)

(72' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1
1.447 AC.

(63,011 SQ. FT.)

LOT 2R-1, BLOCK 1
1.686 AC.

(73,452 SQ. FT.)
LEGENDLEGEND

V I C
I N

I T
Y
 M

A
P
  
 (

N
. T

.
S
.
)

LOT 2R-1 & LOT 2R-2, BLOCK 1
BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK

O'NEAL SURVEYING CO.
3111 COLE AVE., STE. 103
DALLAS, TX 75204
(903) 708-2891
TBPLS FIRM # 10194132
WWW.ONEALSURVEYING.COM

SC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT FOUND (AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD W/RED CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED "ONEAL 6570" SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(UNLESS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROLLING MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.K. NAIL FOUND WITH WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED "BHB" FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.L.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
542.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8°06'35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82°13'16" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
458.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8°06'35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82°13'16" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1323.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3°12'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 29°06'06" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16°26'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 35°43'06" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18°12'31"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 34°50'09" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1331.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4°40'24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 23°23'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
108.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 24°03'39" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 11°46'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°56'25" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.F (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.F (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F "BENT"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F W/YELLOW CAP "BHB" BRS. N54°32'40"W-0.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.K. NLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F W/YELLOW CAP "BHB" (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F W/YELLOW CAP "BHB" (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" I.R.F (CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" I.R.F W/YELLOW CAP "BGT"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF ADDISON RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION VOLUME 94138, PAGE 4334 - D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N78°09'59"W-256.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N78°09'59"W-112.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S78°09'59"E-227.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N11°56'01"E-110.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S78°14'57"E-233.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°46'02"W-333.01''

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF DALLAS 15' WATER EASEMENT VOL. 5306, PG. 329, - D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
21' T.P.& L. EASEMENT VOL 80006, PG. 717, - D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE ESMT. INST. NO. 200100100113 O.P.R.D.C.T. (TO BE REMOVED BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATER & SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT INST. NO. 200100100113 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY EASEMENT VOLUME 94124, PAGE 946 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK 1 BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK INST. NO. 200100100113 O.P.R.D.C.T. MESQUITE CREEK DEVELOPMENT, INC. VOLUME 2000229, PAGE 11119 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTION OF BLOCK 1 BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK VOLUME 81060, PAGE 170 D.R.D.C.T. GINGERCREST, INC. INSTRUMENT NUMBER 201200358777 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK VOLUME 83042, PAGE 425 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PFLUGER ADDITION VOLUME 94176, PAGE 1650 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ 234.29' PASS 5/8" I.R.F W/YELLOW CAP "BHB"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' ELECTRIC EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S78°09'59"E-66.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°50'01"W-222.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK 1 - BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTION OF BLOCK 1 - BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°50'01"W 108.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRELANE ESMT. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' FIRELANE ESMT. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRELANE ESMT. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUTUAL ACCESS ESMT. (BY THIS PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MESQUITE CREEK DEVELOPMENT, INC. INSTRUMENT NUMBER __________________ O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°50'01"W-222.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELTWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DART

AutoCAD SHX Text
Country

AutoCAD SHX Text
Place Golf

AutoCAD SHX Text
Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
LE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIRPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILEY  POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOBBIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREND

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REALTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
BILLY MITCHELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHENAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINDBERG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINDBERG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONEHENGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
(UP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLAT BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK AN ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF ADDISON, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 200101242494 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS AND A PORTION OF BLOCK 1, BELT LINE/MARSH BUSINESS PARK, AN ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF ADDISON, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 81060, PAGE 170 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING 3.133 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE D. MYERS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 923 TOWN OF ADDISON, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS SCALE: 1"=30'     JULY, 2019     SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1. THE BEARINGS AND GRID COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983, NORTH CENTRAL ZONE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER: RACETRAC PETROLEUM, INC. 200 GALLERIA PARKWAY SE, STE. 900 ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 (770)431-7600

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: GINGERCREST, INC. 200 GALLERIA PARKWAY SE, STE. 900 ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 (770)431-7600

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE: SELLING A PORTION OF THIS ADDITION BY METES AND BOUNDS IS A VIOLATION OF CITY ORDINANCE AND STATE LAW AND IS SUBJECT TO FINES AND WITHHOLDING OF UTILITIES AND BUILDING PERMITS. PLACEMENT OF STREET TREES SHALL NOT INTERFERE WITH THE PLACEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES OR VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS. EXISTING AND FUTURE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES MAY REQUIRE THE REMOVAL OR PRECLUDE THE PLANTING OF STREET TREES. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH ZONING ORD. 66 AS AMENDED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MESQUITE CREEK DEVELOPMENT, INC. 200 GALLERIA PARKWAY SE, STE. 900 ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30339 (770)431-7600

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER: JONES | CARTER 4500 MERCANTILE PLAZA DRIVE, STE. 210 FORT WORTH, TX 76137 PHONE: 972-488-3880





   
Planning & Zoning Commission
Meeting Date: 08/20/2019  

Agenda Caption:
Regular Agenda:



   
Planning & Zoning Commission
Meeting Date: 08/20/2019  

Agenda Caption:
PUBLIC HEARING Case 1787-Z/Village on the Parkway. Public hearing,
discussion, and take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance
changing the zoning on a 31-acre property located at 5100 Belt Line Road, which
property is currently zoned PD, Planned Development, through Ordinance
O12-001, by allowing residential uses and approving development plans for a
new office building with retail ground floor, a new 239-unit multifamily building
with structured parking and ground floor retail, and an expansion of existing
structured parking.

Attachments
1787-Z P&Z Packet 
1787-Z Plans 
Exceptional Elements Provided by Applicant 



1787-Z 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1787-Z/Village on the Parkway. Public hearing, discussion, and 
take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on a 31-
acre property located at 5100 Belt Line Road, which property is currently zoned PD, 
Planned Development, through Ordinance O12-001, by allowing residential uses and 
approving development plans for a new office building with retail ground floor, a new 239-
unit multifamily building with structured parking and ground floor retail, and an expansion 
of existing structured parking.  

LOCATION MAP 

  
 

City of Dallas 



 

 
 
 

August 16, 2019 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
RE: 1787-Z/Village on the Parkway 
 
LOCATION:      5100 Belt Line Road 
 
REQUEST: Approval of an amendment to the existing 

Planned Development District, zoned 
through Ordinance O12-001, to allow 
residential uses and approval of 
development plans, in order to allow 
development of a new 31,006 square foot 
office building with retail ground floor, a new 
269,875 square foot, 239-unit multifamily 
building with retail ground floor and 
structured parking, and 66,792 square foot 
expansion of existing structured parking 
garage 

 
APPLICANT:  Jonathan Vinson, Jackson Walker LLP 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Background: This property was developed in the late 1970’s as the Sakowitz Village Shopping 
Center. The Sakowitz store occupied a three-story building on the corner of Dallas Parkway and 
Belt Line Road until 1986. The shopping center was renamed the Village on the Parkway, and 
the building sat vacant for several years, but was later occupied by Bed Bath and Beyond.   
 
In 1996, Southwest Properties rezoned the center from Local Retail to Planned Development 
(Ordinance O96-003) in order to change some development standards and adopt a mixed-use 
parking ratio of 1 space per 250 square feet for all uses; the request did not include any physical 
changes to the center. The PD was subsequently amended (O96-028) to make minor changes to 
development standards, again no physical changes were proposed.   
 
In 2000, the center was purchased by Dunhill Properties, which subdivided the property to create 
two separate lots on the southwest and southeast corners of the shopping center. Those lots 
provided required parking for the shopping center but were seldom used. Dunhill contracted to 
sell the two lots to a development group that wanted to build two residential towers on the parking 



2 
 

 

lots. In 2001, KS Development proposed to construct an apartment tower on the western lot, 
adjacent to the Dallas Parkway, and a condominium building on the east side of the property. The 
proposal also had retail and office space on the ground floor of the project, on the Montfort Drive 
side.   
 
Staff supported amending the Comprehensive Plan to allow the KS Development plan to be built.  
At that time, Staff evaluated that project against the goals of Addison’s Comprehensive Plan, and 
found it was consistent with those goals. Staff recommended the Comprehensive Plan be 
amended to designate this area as a mixed-use district that would allow for retail, condominium, 
and multifamily uses. The rezoning for KS Development was approved by City Council through 
Ordinance O02-001 on January 8, 2002. KS Development tried for many months to secure 
financing, but could not, and although the project was not built, the zoning remained in place.   
 
In 2005, Redwood Residential proposed to build only one tower on the east (Montfort) side of the 
property. Redwood Residential planned to build an 11-story condominium building, without 
ground floor retail or office uses, in the same footprint as the condominium building proposed by 
KS Development. The building would stand approximately 164 feet tall, which was 15 feet shorter 
than the height approved for KS Development, and 15 feet shorter than the 179 height that the 
FAA would approve. The zoning for the Amalfi Condominiums was approved by Council on June 
28, 2005 through Ordinance O05-024; however, the project was never built.   
 
In 2011, the center was sold to VOP, LP, a partnership entity formed between The Retail 
Connection and Lincoln Properties. They proposed to replat the two separate lots to combine the 
properties back into one and redevelop it as a shopping center with two anchor tenants and a 
parking garage structure. The new PD, along with two SUPs for a Whole Foods Grocery Store, 
with the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption, and a 12-screen movie theater, was 
approved on January 24th, 2012 through Ordinances O12-002, O12-003, and O12-004.  When 
this zoning was approved, the prior approvals for residential development were negated. 
 
In 2015, the property was sold to UBS Realty Investors, LLC in partnership with Vestar. Soon 
after the purchase, the new owners began studying how they could continue to redevelop the 
center.  
 
Proposed Plan:  At this time, the property owner would like to amend the existing Planned 
Development district to include residential uses. Additionally, they would like to amend the site 
plan and request development plan approval to include an office building on the northeast portion 
of the property, an expansion of the existing parking garage, and a multifamily building and 
parking garage in place of the parking lot at the southeast corner of the property. 
 
The project also proposes other changes to the site. The existing driveway in the southeast corner 
of the property on to Montfort Drive would be closed. The next drive to the north on Montfort Drive 
would be adjusted to accommodate a new traffic signal. There would also be minor changes to 
the parking layout and drive aisles interior to the site in order to improve traffic flow and provide 
additional landscaping. 



3 
 

 

 
Office:  Proposed plans include a new two-story, 32,831 square foot office building, of which 
15,518 square feet are ground floor retail, 15,488 square feet of second floor office, and the 
potential for 1,825 square feet of outdoor patio space. This building is identified as Building 900 
on the proposed site plan and is located on the site of the former TGI Fridays restaurant. 
 

Building Height: The maximum building height is 41 feet 8 inches above grade. 
 
Building Elevations: The building is proposed to be constructed of burnished block, stone, 
brick, and cement plaster with accents of metal screen and composite wood. 

 
Parking Garage Expansion:  Proposed plans include a one-level garage expansion of 33,396 
square feet with a total of 103 additional parking spaces. The structure would be designed to 
accommodate additional levels as deemed necessary, and if approved, in the future. 
 

Building Height: The maximum height of the proposed addition is 30 feet 6 inches above 
grade level. 
 
Building Elevations: The addition is proposed to be constructed of smooth stone veneer 
with composite wood slat screen and metal screen paneling. The staircases are proposed 
to be screened with architectural mesh guardrail paneling on the north and east elevations.  

 
Multifamily:  The proposal includes a new 270,861 square foot, 239-unit multifamily building. The 
ground floor includes 3,530 square feet for the leasing office and amenity space as well as 11,000 
square feet for ground floor retail. This building is identified as Building 100 on the proposed site 
plan. The residential units are located on the upper four levels, partially wrapping a portion of the 
313,214 square foot structured parking garage, with a total of 731 parking spaces. The structure 
would also include three connected courtyards, including one swimming pool. To accommodate 
residents with dogs, a small dog run has been proposed along the east side of the building.  
 

Building Height: Due to the property’s grade variation, the proposed building varies in 
height, from seven stories on the west and eight stories on the east. The maximum building 
height is 82 feet above grade level. 
 
Building Elevations: The Planned Development district standards do not provide a 
masonry requirement for the exterior walls of structures and the majority of the shopping 
center consists of stucco, with brick and stone accents throughout. The building is 
proposed to be constructed of stucco, stone, brick, metal paneling, and cementitious 
siding. The proposed materials were chosen to match the existing buildings. 
 
Unit Sizes: The mix of residential units ranges from studio units of 584 square feet to two-
bedroom units of 1,440. Overall, the average unit size is 857 square feet. This is in line 
with other recent multifamily developments in Addison. The breakdown of units proposed 
is as follows: 



4 
 

 

 
Unit Type Square Footage Number of Units 
Efficiency 584-615 square feet 23 

1-Bedroom 648-902 square feet 154 
2-Bedroom 1,046-1,440 square feet 62 
Total Units  239 

 
Parking:  The Planned Development ordinance approved for this center allows most uses to be 
parked at a ratio of 1 space per 250 square feet and requires 1 parking space per 4 seats at the 
movie theater. Currently, the site has 1,581 parking spaces, with 959 surface spaces and 622 
garage spaces. 
 
The proposed plans show the new total gross leasable area for all office, retail, and restaurant 
uses, inclusive of patio areas, as 379,436 square feet, which would require 1,518 parking spaces. 
The movie theater has 1,282 seats and requires 428 parking spaces. The multifamily building is 
proposed with a total of 239 units and would require 301 parking spaces. Therefore, the new total 
parking requirement is 2,247 parking spaces.  
 
The proposed site plan shows surface parking spaces restriped in order to add 377 additional 
parking spaces, the existing garage expansion would result in an additional 103 parking spaces, 
and the new parking garage at the southeast corner of the property would provide 731 parking 
spaces. This totals 2,792 parking spaces across the site. The proposed development plans 
provide 578 parking spaces more than required by the 1 space per 250 square foot requirement. 
 
Landscaping: The proposed Landscape Plan has been reviewed by the Parks Department to 
comply with the Town’s Landscape Ordinance. The Landscape Ordinance requires that properties 
be brought up to current standards, where possible, when they are rezoned. 
 
One such requirement is a 25-foot landscaping setback from the street, which cannot be met 
without removing some of the center’s most prominent parking spaces or impeding vehicular 
circulation throughout the site. Where possible, however, the landscape plans provide the buffer 
and enhance it with additional pedestrian improvements. Another requirement is a 1:1 tree 
mitigation. This means that if an 8 caliper inch tree is removed, the ordinance requires that it be 
replaced with a tree of equal or greater size. This cannot be fully met because of the large caliper 
size of the existing mature trees. However, the landscape plans propose to mitigate this by 
providing a larger total number of caliper then required. 
 
Additionally, the site currently has 7.7% landscape coverage, out of the required 20%; the 
proposed landscape plans show a 5.4% increase, to a total of 13.1% landscape coverage.  
 
It should also be noted that in lieu of being able to fully comply with the landscape regulations and 
the Master Transportation Plan requirements, the applicant has provided an improved bus stop 
and shelter along Montfort Drive with a space for public art in the future, as well as a landscaped 
shared use trail along the southern border of the property with shade structures and seating in an 



5 
 

 

effort to further the Town’s vision of providing connectivity across Dallas Parkway and to the east 
side of Town.  
 
Given the existing conditions and limitations of this site, Staff believes that while the landscape 
plans do not fully meet all of the requirements, the proposed improvements move the site closer 
into compliance while balancing the need to provide sufficient parking and circulation throughout 
the site. 
 
Open Space: With residential development, the Town will require a dedication of open space to 
serve the residents. In the past, Staff has used the standard established in the Urban Center 
zoning district to determine what amount of open space must be dedicated. This standard requires 
two acres for every 1,000 residents, with an assumption that there are 1.5 persons per dwelling 
unit. Based on the number of units proposed, .717 acres of open space should be required.  
 
As part of the Parks Recreation and Open Space Master Plan process and the new Unified 
Development Code, the Town has discussed guarding against smaller in-fill development creating 
parks that are too small and inefficient to maintain. Instead, the property owner is proposing two 
areas that are private open space that would be accessible by the public. One would be adjacent 
to the new office building and the other would be along Montfort Drive. Staff believes that this, in 
combination with the trail dedication along the southern property line, should be considered in lieu 
of an open space dedication. 
 
Streetscape: The 2016 Master Transportation Plan (MTP) established streetscape standards for 
the various street types throughout the Town. Belt Line Road is identified as a Principal Arterial, 
which requires an 8-foot sidewalk and 6-foot parkway buffer, Montfort Drive is a Minor Arterial, 
which requires a 6-foot sidewalk and 5-foot parkway buffer, and Dallas Parkway is identified as 
Tollway, which requires a 6-foot sidewalk and a 6-foot buffer. The existing frontage along Belt 
Line Road does not currently comply with the MTP requirements. Due to the existing site 
limitations and complications associated with removing all the parking along that frontage, at the 
present time the applicant is unable to make these improvements. The submitted plans show 
improvements along Montfort Drive and Dallas Parkway where portions of the frontage meet the 
streetscape requirements. Given the difficulties of working with an existing development and the 
site limitations, Staff believes that the proposed improvements move the site closer into 
compliance. 
 
To improve safety and the efficient flow of traffic on public streets, the Town’s transportation 
design standards call for properties to have only one driveway along a public street. The standards 
provide for exceptions to this if the property generates sufficient vehicle trips to warrant additional 
access points. Currently, there are four driveways onto this site from Dallas Parkway and three 
from Montfort Drive. Given the traffic volume experienced by this property, Staff has only 
requested that the southern-most driveway along Dallas Parkway and the southern-most 
driveway along Montfort Dr be closed off, as they do not comply with driveway spacing 
requirements and pose safety concerns. This would leave three driveways off of Dallas Parkway, 
and alleviate the safety concerns, therefore, Staff does not believe that the property warrants an 



6 
 

 

exception in this specific driveway location. The proposed plans show the southern driveway on 
Montfort would be closed, but only show the southern driveway on Dallas Parkway to be slightly 
revised, not fully closed off. The applicant is asking that the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council allow for this driveway to remain. 
 
Traffic:  Given the size and scope of the proposed development, a Traffic Impact Assessment 
(TIA) was required to determine what effect the proposed development would have on the 
roadway network in 2022 and 2027. Traffic Impact Analyses are based on an industry standard 
set by the Trip Generation Manual published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. The 
Manual combines multiple studies of actual traffic counts from different uses to establish the 
average number of one-way trips that similar uses can be expected to generate in a day, as well 
as in the AM peak hour and the PM peak hour. Based on the analysis, the proposed development 
can be successfully incorporated into the surrounding roadway network without significantly 
effecting the existing vehicle traffic operations. 
 
The TIA identified that a new traffic signal would be warranted on Montfort Drive, at the 
southeastern driveway, adjacent to the proposed multifamily development. While not required for 
minimum traffic operations, the analysis showed that a signalized intersection reduces turning 
movement delay into and out of Village on the Parkway and does not affect through traffic on 
Montfort Drive. Additionally, a traffic signal would be helpful for pedestrians wishing to cross 
between Verde Valley and Belt Line Road. The property owner has agreed to provide the new 
traffic signal, at their cost, in order to fulfill this requirement.  
 
Fire Access: The plans have been reviewed by the Fire Marshal to ensure sufficient site access 
and building coverage. The submitted plans show most of the requirements will be met, with the 
exception of the combined fire lane and trail along the southern portion of the property where a 
roll-over curb is proposed in order to accommodate fire truck access. 
 
2013 Comprehensive Plan: Zoning decisions should always be guided by the Comprehensive 
Plan. Village on the Parkway is discussed several times in the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. The 
Plan states the following: 
 

Addison should consider mixed use developments as a viable alternative as sections of 
the Town face redevelopment. Several locations along Belt Line Road would lend 
themselves to mixed use development, as well as other locations such as the Village on 
the Parkway (5100 Belt Line Road) and the Prestonwood Place shopping center (5290 
Belt Line Road). As the population of the United States and the Metroplex continues to 
increase and natural resources continue to dwindle, more and more cities will find 
themselves moving in the Live Above the Shop direction that Addison has already 
embraced. 

 
Additionally, the Comprehensive Plan includes a map (Figure 1) identifying locations for future 
mixed-use development, which mirrors the language above in highlighting Village on the Parkway 
and Prestonwood Place. 



7 
 

 

 
Figure 1 

 
With the proposed improvements at Village on the Parkway adding a residential and office 
component, as well as the plans approved earlier in 2019 for the Prestonwood Place shopping 
center to add to retail and office components, Staff believes that the proposal complies with the 
direction established in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Housing Policy: In order to help guide future housing decisions, the City Council adopted a 
housing policy in 2015 and amended it in early 2017. The applicable sections are discussed 
below. 
 

• Where feasible and appropriate, new housing should increase the proportion of fee-simple 
ownership in Addison’s housing mix.  Apartment-only rezoning is unlikely to be approved, 
as currently the ratio of rental to ownership properties is higher than desired.  
 

Staff believes that lower-density, owner-occupied housing, such as single-family 
homes or townhomes, is not feasible in this location due to the high development 
costs, the impact on parking, and the location within an existing retail development. 
While the policy gives general direction that apartments are unlikely to be 
approved, it states that special consideration may be given to exceptional projects. 

 



8 
 

 

• A proposal should offer a “best fit” mix of uses and housing choices within the context of 
the surrounding Addison community.  
 

• New housing should create or enhance neighborhoods of urban character rather than 
locate on a stand-alone, nonintegrated property and should continue the high-quality 
design and walkability that make Addison’s existing neighborhoods distinctive. 

 
Due to its proximity to retail, restaurants, and office uses, a residential use in this 
location adds a mixed-use element to this development. More broadly, the 
residential component of Village on the Parkway would be proximate to the 
adjacent multifamily residential in Dallas and single-family neighborhoods on the 
east side of Montfort in Addison. 

 
• The City Council acknowledges that there may be exceptional projects that do not comply 

with elements of this policy. The Council encourages developers and Staff to pursue 
projects that represent the highest and best use of each property and that advance 
portions of this policy or other Town goals. 

 
Staff believes that this project warrants special consideration as it represents the 
highest and best use of this particular property, while also promoting several 
elements of the housing policy and other Town goals in that it:  

o Achieves the direction of the Comprehensive Plan to create a mixed-use 
development in this location. 

o Makes improvements in line with the Master Transportation Plan as well as 
the installation of a new traffic signal. This addresses Council’s goal to 
pursue excellence in transportation systems.  

o Advances the Town’s goal of creating an east/west pedestrian connection 
by securing a trail connection through Village on the Parkway. 

o Enables the property owner to make other improvements to the property 
including addressing community concerns about parking. 

o Provides additional residents to support the retail and restaurant offerings 
within Village on the Parkway, helping to ensure the long-term success of 
the development. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS 
 
In determining a recommendation, Staff considers several factors. First, Staff looks to how the 
proposal fits with adopted plans and policies. As discussed above, the proposal follows the 
guidance of the Comprehensive Plan, complies with the housing policy, and advances the goals 
of the Master Transportation Plan, Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, and 
Economic Development Strategic Plan. 
 



9 
 

 

Additionally, Staff reviews development requests for compliance with zoning, landscaping and 
other requirements and standards to ensure that the development will be functional and 
complementary to the adjacent uses. Again, Staff believes on the whole that the development will 
function well in this location. A few minor concerns are addressed below. 
 
Lastly, Staff considers if the proposal represents the highest and best use of the property long-
term. In this regard Staff believes that the proposal, including the addition of multifamily 
residential, does represent the highest and best use. The parking garage expansion and surface 
parking adjustments will improve how the site functions. The addition of a two-story office/retail 
building will add to the tenant diversity and, along with the residential component, will add a mixed-
use component to the development. 
 
Retail development is becoming increasingly difficult with the changes in the retail landscape. In 
looking at successful contemporary retail projects, they almost always include a mix of uses 
including residential. There is also a strong focus on the experience and the quality of place. The 
addition of residential units allows the property to address both issues. In Staff’s opinion, this will 
improve the likelihood that Village on the Parkway will remain relevant and be able to compete 
with other new developments to the north and south of Addison for top tier tenants now and in the 
future. 
 
With that said, Staff believes three adjustments should be made to the request. 
 

Parking 
In 1996, Staff recommended a mixed-use parking ratio because in a large shopping 
center, it is very difficult to keep up with a required parking count when office, retail, and 
restaurant uses are calculated separately. In a large center there is also generally an 
“economy of scale” that works to provide sufficient parking, though it may not be in as 
convenient of a location as customers would prefer. With the success of the 
redevelopment efforts to this point, parking has been a concern at Village on the Parkway. 
Therefore, Staff would suggest that the parking ratio be increased (meaning to require 
more parking per square foot) by changing the ratio from 1 space per 250 square feet to 
1 space per 200 square feet for all uses except residential and theater. The 1 per 200 ratio 
matches the mixed-use ratio approved for the Prestonwood Place Shopping Center earlier 
this year. With the additional parking spaces added with the expansion of the existing 
garage and the new garage associated with the residential development, the property 
would still provide parking in excess of this new requirement. 
 
Additional Open Space 
While the proposed plans provide open space, including some limited amount of space 
immediately adjacent to the residential building for residents with dogs, the provided 
amount is too small and would most likely not be able to keep live grass as a result of 
extensive usage. Staff believes that since the property has such a large surplus of parking 
spaces over the requirement, the property would benefit more from the provision of a 
larger open space for dogs in place of some of the parking behind Yard House. Replacing 



10 
 

 

these parking spaces with additional green space would improve the quality of life for 
future residents with dogs. 
 
Southwestern Driveway to Dallas Parkway 
Currently, there is a driveway at the southwestern corner of the property. Due to the 
curvature of Dallas Parkway, it is very difficult for vehicles leaving Village on the Parkway 
to see oncoming traffic on the street. This creates an unsafe condition that should not 
have been allowed. Due to the design of the multifamily garage, residents leaving the 
garage have a straight shot to this driveway. This would likely increase the usage of this 
driveway and increase the likelihood of accidents. Therefore, Staff requested that the 
driveway be closed. The property owner has expressed concerns about limiting access to 
the tenants near that drive and would like the drive to remain open. 
 
 

With that explanation, Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. Parking ratio should be revised to one parking space per 200 square feet for all 
uses except residential and movie theater. 

2. The 17 parking spaces behind Yard House should be converted to additional open 
space for use by residents of the adjacent multifamily building. 

3. The southern most driveway on Dallas Parkway shall be removed and replaced 
with additional landscaping. 























































 
23636663v.1 

Design elements we have incorporated into the project to make it exceptional include: 
 
1. Provide a pedestrian trail system across the project, along the south property line.  We have 

been told that this is a very high priority for the Town and would facilitate future trail 
linkages. 

 
2. Removal of existing surface parking and narrowing of one drive entry to provide an 

enhanced pedestrian pathway along the Dallas North Tollway service road. 
 
3. Enhanced pedestrian pathways and connections throughout the site. 
 
4. Improved landscaping and enhanced pedestrian connections along Montfort Drive.  
 
5. Creation of an open space/park at the north end of the development. 
 
6.  Upgraded exterior building finishes, including masonry on the proposed new buildings. 
 
7. Improved wayfinding signage, facilitating and enhancing walkability. 
 
8. Willingness to provide a traffic light on Montfort (at developer’s cost, not the Town’s as 

in the development agreement). 
 
9. Closure of multiple ingress/egress locations throughout the project to simplify and reduce 

traffic circulation, as well as enhancing the pedestrian experience. 
 
10. The expansion of the parking garage.  While not required, the proactive expansion of the 

garage obviously adds available spaces, and also makes the existing garage safer and more 
integrated into the remainder of the center. 

 
11. Enhancement of the bus stop per the Town’s Montfort plan (including public art). 
 
12. Upgrades along Montfort per the Town’s plan. 
 
13. Renovated courtyard at Building 700. 
 
14. Closed driveway at the southeast corner. 
 
15. Improved drive at the southwest corner. 
 
16. This is not a standalone multifamily project.  It is a crucial component of a successful 
mixed-use project.  This is an evolution of the retail industry in general and this project 
(specifically). If we want to continue to evolve this project, residential has to be part of it. 
 
17. We are activating the weakest portion of the shopping center.  This is an area that has 
traditionally been vacant/under-leased.  We need to give tenants/operators in that area the best 



 
23636663v.1 

chance to succeed that we can.  Vacant or underperforming space is a detriment to the Town and 
the neighbors, not just to the project. 
 
18. Perhaps most importantly, a residential project allows ownership to spend the necessary 
capital to add/enhance/improve all of the other items listed above.  Without this piece, most of the 
other improvements will not move forward, which severely impacts the future of the project.  We 
have an opportunity to do these things now, but without the residential piece, it would be infeasible 
for the owners to spend the millions in funds necessary for the Town’s requests.   
 
 


	Agenda
	1.  _2_1_Approval of the Minutes of the June 18, 2019 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
	    June 18, 2019 PandZ Minutes
	2.  _2_2_REPLAT Racetrac
	    PandZ Packet
	    Plat Document
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	77805712

	_2_2_Regular Agenda
	3.  _2_3_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1787-Z_Village on the Parkway
	    1787-Z PandZ Packet
	1787-Z Map
	1787-Z Staff Report

	    1787-Z Plans
	    Exceptional Elements Provided by Applicant

